
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Ted Burgess


Consideration of  staff's recommendation for renewal of property and casualty insurance with Public Risk Underwriters for Fiscal Year 


2010 at the proposed premium of $415,660.


Through a Request for Proposals process conducted last year, current coverage for property and casualty insurance is provided by 


Travelers through Public Risk Underwriters.  A renewal proposal has been presented to the county, consistent with the Fiscal Year 2009 


rates.


Authorization to procure property and casualty insurance, including accidental death and dismemberment insurance, and Commissioners' 


travel insurance from Public Risk Underwriters for Fiscal Year 2010 at the proposed premium of $415,660.


Funding for this request will be included in the FY2010 budget proposal.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 23, 2009







 


Attachment 1


Public Risk Underwriters
Premiums


Actual Actual Annualized Proposed
FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010


Property & Casualty Insurance:
Initial premium $717,051 $454,695 $383,944 $393,774
Vehicle, equipment, & other adjustments 7,941           2,250           2,186           TBD  
Other asset adjustments 78                1,547           TBD  TBD  
Add crime coverage NA  2,457           Incl. Above Incl. Above
End-of-year audit settlement* 3,949           855              TBD TBD  


729,019       461,804       386,130       393,774       
Umbrella - rented communications towers NA  NA  16,225         16,225         
    Total - Property & Casualty Insurance 729,019       461,804       402,355       409,999       


Other Insurance Categories:
AD&D - Sheriff's Department 2,228           2,028           2,028           2,028           
AD&D - Volunteer firefighters 6,699           6,703           2,883           2,883           
Commissioners' travel insurance 750              750              750              750              
    Total - Other categories 9,677           9,481           5,661           5,661           
        Total Insurance Premiums $738,696 $471,285 $408,016 $415,660 **
        Three-Year Reduction in Premium -43.7%


*This is actually paid after the fiscal year ends.


**Premium Changes From FY 2009 to FY 2010:
Current annualized net charges for FY 2009 $408,077
Coverage for thirteen additional vehicles on hand 3,733           
Adjustments to contractors, computer, boiler
& machinery, misc equipment, & other items 3,850           
    Net proposed FY 2010 Premiums $415,660


4/10/2009 N:\Ted Burgess\Insurance\2010\BOC - Premium History





		Finance- Property and Casualty Insurance Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Property and Casualty Insurance Backup

		2010 Prop & Casualty Ins - Backup 1.pdf

		Sheet1



		2010 Prop & Casualty Ins - Backup 2

		FAYETE98














COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fire & Emergency Services M. Allen McCullough/Pete Nelms


Approval of staff's request for permission to apply for a grant from the Department of Homeland Security Assistance to Firefighters Grant 


Program, in the amount of $18,675.41.


This grant program targets projects that benefit firefighters and their operation. Recipients must commit to a 30% local match. If Fayette 


County's application is approved, the local share will be $5,602.62.These grant funds would allow the Department to purchase the 


following:  Physical Fitness Equipment: Physical fitness is required for firefighters, in an effort to reduce injuries which result in loss of 


work and long and short term disabilities.  The equipment below will enhance existing physical fitness opportunities: 


2 Landice L770 LTD Pro Trainer Treadmills                                                                            $2,895 X 2 =  $  5,790 


2 Hoist PTS Ensemble 3 Smith Rack (Multi-exercise Machine)                                               $3,399 X 2 = $  6,798 


Shipping/Handling                                                                                                                                          $   500 


Total                                                                                                                                                               $13,088 


Fire Safety Community Fire  Extinguisher Training System: The Department is in the process of developing a community education 


program that includes fire extinguisher training. This simulator will allow an instructor to provide realistic yet safe fire extinguisher training. 


Intelligent Training System Base Package                                                                                                 $ 5,587.41                                      


                                                                                                                              Total Grant Request     $18,675.41 


                                                                                                                                        Federal Share     $14,006.55 


                                                                                                                                            Local Share     $  5,602.62


Approval of request to allow staff of Fire and Emergency Services to apply for a grant in the amount of $18,675.41 from the U.S. 


Department of Homeland Security Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program.


Local match to come from Fire Services Account # 53117.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009









		Fire and Emergency Services- Grant Agenda Request File.pdf

		Fire and Emergency Services- Grant Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Consideration of staff's recommendation for a designated vendor to provide the County's employee health insurance services. This item 


was last discussed at the April 9, 2009 Board of Commissioners meeting.  


At the February 4 Workshop, the Board of Commissioners heard from the County's current providers of employee health insurance who 


outlined options the County may want to consider, including a self-insurance option. The Board directed staff to investigate means by 


which the County could save money in this area and to development recommendations for how to keep costs down as much as possible 


and a recommendation for a vendor or vendors to provide coverage or to administer a self-funded program. 


 


At the Board's April 9 meeting, staff shared information about proposals received and asked for more time to evaluate those proposals 


and to make a recommendation for an employee health insurance provider. The Board agreed to schedule another discussion for its April 


23 meeting, as requested, at which time a provider and any changes in plan benefits can be acted upon. 


 


The County's employee health insurance renews on June 1 each year so a decision is needed at this time. 


 


Discussion and action on the selection of a provider for the employee health insurance services for the period of June 1, 2009 through 


May 31, 2010.


Employee Health and Dental Insurance is a budgeted item.


Yes Thursday, April 9, 2009


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, April 23, 2009









		Human Resources- Health Insurance Renewal Agenda Request File.pdf

		HumanResources- Health Insurance Renewal Backup

		HumanResourcesHealthInsuranceRenewalAgendaRequestFile.pdf

		HumanResourcesHealthInsuranceRenewalBackup












Minutes
Board of Commissioners


April 1, 2009
3:30 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Wednesday, April 1, 2009, at 3:30
 p.m. in the Commissioners’ Conference Room, Suite 100, of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall
Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.  


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA: Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


OLD BUSINESS:
A. INFORMATIONAL UPDATE FROM THE RETIREMENT STUDY COMMITTEE REGARDING THE DEFINED


BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLAN.


Public Safety Director Allen McCullough updated the Board on the retirement study committee’s recommendation for
a vendor for the defined benefit retirement plan for county employees. He said the committee was recommending the
Association of County Commissioners of Georgia defined benefit program which is administered through Governmental
Employee Benefits Corporation (ACCG-GEBCorp). He said this item would come before the Board on April 9, 2009 for
the Board’s consideration for a vote. A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


NEW BUSINESS:
B. DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS,


INCLUDING THE PROCEDURES FOR APPROVAL OF PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLATS:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina discussed the Fayette County Subdivision Regulations, specifically
the procedures for approval of final plats and whether the Planning Commission or the Board of Commissioners should
be providing final approval.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows these minutes and is made







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 1, 2009


Page 2


an official part hereof.  He said staff was recommending that the Board of Commissioners be responsible for the approval
for final plats and at the same time approve the final acceptance of any public right-of-way for streets inside the
subdivision. He said staff had done some preliminary changes in the Subdivision Regulations as well as including
conditions for the new Stormwater Department.
  
County Attorney Scott Bennett interjected that under the State Law either the Board of Commissioners or the Planning
Commission can approve the final plats.  He said it would be up to the Board of Commissioners as to how this would
be determined.  He said typically a final plat also includes road dedication.  He said the question was if the Board of
Commissioners wanted to see these requests before building begins.  He said currently these requests go to the
Planning Commission but if the Board wanted to see them this procedure could be changed.  


Commissioner Hearn remarked that the significance of a final plat was that the property could not be sold and no
closings could occur prior to the final plat being recorded.  


County Attorney Scott Bennett said usually in a final plat there were areas shown on the final plat to be dedicated to the
County for road purposes and the lots are drawn out and created at that time.  He said this could be one process and
done by either the Board of Commissioners or the Planning Commission. He said at that point the roads were in, the
curbing was in, the utilities were in and construction would be about to begin.  


Mr. Frisina interjected that staff did not issue permits until the roads were dedicated.  He said even though a plat was
recorded, permits would not be issued until the road dedication.  He noted that acceptance of street light districts was
done at a separate time and would not hold up the construction start date.  


Attorney Scott Bennett remarked that the requirement that final plats be approved either by the Board of Commissioners
or the Planning Commission was actually for the Clerk of the Superior Court regarding Title 15, Chapter 6. Superior
Courts, Article 2. Clerks of Superior Court.  He said the Clerk was actually prohibited from recording a final plat until it
was approved by the Board of Commissioners or the Planning Commission.  
 
Commissioner Maxwell felt the Planning Commission would be the better body to make this decision since their entire
focus was on planning.  Chairman Smith agreed and said he had no problem with the Planning Commission handling
this and felt they would have more technical expertise for this.


The Board agreed that the Planning Commission would be the body designated to approve preliminary and final plats.
Mr. Frisina remarked that staff would review the Subdivision Regulations and determine if there were any changes that
needed to be made.  He said he would bring any proposed amendments back to the Board at the next workshop meeting
for discussion and then advertise for a public hearing for consideration by the Board.
 
C. CONSIDERATION OF THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE’S REQUEST TO ANNEX 1.00 ACRE KNOWN AS 172


NORTH 85 PARKWAY.  THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOT 184 OF THE 5  DISTRICT, FRONTSTH


ON NORTH 85 PARKWAY, AND IS CURRENTLY ZONED COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY (C-H):


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina discussed this request with the Board.  A copy of the request and
backup, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said given the
area that  this was located, staff really did not see a problem with this annexation request.  He pointed out that there
would be a loss of revenue and fire and EMS would lose fire tax dollars in the amount of $668.23.  He said the parcel
was located near the bowling alley on North 85 Parkway.  Commissioner Hearn asked Mr. Frisina if he knew the reason
for the annexation request.  Mr. Frisina replied that he did not but he would ask the City.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 1, 2009


Page 3


After further discussion, it was the consensus of the Board that it would not object to the City of Fayetteville’s annexation
request.


D. CONSIDERATION OF THE CITY OF PEACHTREE CITY’S REQUEST TO ANNEX 17.819 ACRES KNOWN
AS THE PEACHTREE EAST SHOPPING CENTER.  THIS PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN LAND LOT 69 OF
THE 7  DISTRICT, FRONTS ON S.R. 54 WEST, BROKEN BOW DRIVE, AND SHILOH DRIVE, AND ISTH


CURRENTLY ZONED COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL (C-C):


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina discussed this request with the Board.  A copy of the request and
backup, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said the County
would lose approximately $26,500 in annual revenue from Occupational Tax fees, Alcohol Permit fees, Fire Tax and
EMS Tax, should the property be annexed.  He noted that this would not result in a change in zoning or land use and
was more less a lateral move.  He said there was not really a land use objection that the County could make in this case.


Commissioner Horgan clarified that the only two entrances into the adjacent mobile home park were through the Publix
Shopping Center.  Mr. Frisina added that the two commercial drives were not County owned or public streets.  He said
the shopping center maintains the access road entrances and the mobile home park maintains the streets within the
park.  He further remarked that the shopping center as well as the mobile home park were on Peachtree City sewer. 


Commissioner Maxwell questioned a possible mutual aid issue.  County Administrator Jack Krakeel said on page 13 of
the Board’s backup information it stated that “The property is already developed and is currently served by the City’s
emergency personnel under the mutual aid agreement along with the County.” He felt this statement was highly
misleading.  He said the property was currently serviced by the County’s public safety agencies and the County did have
a mutual aid agreement with Peachtree City and other neighboring jurisdictions, which essentially means that in the
event that the County were to exhaust all of its public safety resources in responding to an incident at this location, it
could then call upon neighboring jurisdictions to provide assistance. He noted that also on page 13 regarding section
14.c. it stated “It is anticipated that the existing shopping center will have limited impact on the police and fire emergency
services.  Currently, the City’s Police and Fire Departments render mutual emergency aid along with the County to the
shopping center.  If the property  is annexed, the City’s Police Department will begin patrols of the shopping center and
will respond to shoplifting, auto theft, and other such crimes to which it does not currently respond.  The Fire Department
would also begin monitoring the shopping center for fire safety which it currently does not do.  Both departments will
respond under automatic aid as opposed to mutual aid to emergency calls.”   He pointed out that there currently was
no automatic aid agreement with the City of Peachtree City. He said he was unsure of the City’s expectation and he felt
there needed to be clarification.  


Chairman Smith felt there were really no fundamental statutory grounds for an objection to this request.  He asked for
permission to draft a letter to the Mayor of Peachtree City asking that they prepare a mutual aid agreement for the
County to continue with fire protection services in exchange for an amount payment equal to the fire tax or agree to pay
the County a diminished amount to recoup infrastructure costs.  


Commissioner Maxwell felt like there would be no leverage in writing a letter.  He said this Board could vote to object
to the annexation request and have some ability to negotiate with the City because there was not a clear plan of what
the City was wanting.  He said this might not be a valid reason to object that could be sustained but at least it would put
the county in a position to negotiate with them.  He said other wise there would be no ability to negotiate at all and he
questioned the point of even writing the letter.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 1, 2009


Page 4


Chairman Smith asked Mr. Frisina for the time frame for a response to the City and Mr. Frisina replied that the County
would have to get a letter to the City by Thursday, April 9 .  Chairman Smith said the Board really needed to take actionth


on this today. 


Commissioner Maxwell asked the County Attorney if the Board needed to give a reason.  Attorney Bennett said the
statute states what the Board can object to and if the Board wanted to state one of the objections it could, but it would
need to be statutory.  


Chairman Smith said he was not sure that the Board had grounds to do anything.  He said the Board could get the
answers to these questions, but did not necessarily have the fundamental grounds to object to the annexation.


Commissioner Maxwell said if the Board did not object, it would still need to get answers because these residents are
still Fayette County citizens.  


Mr. Krakeel felt there was no fundamental change in the relationship and mutual aid agreements were signed and in
effect between both jurisdictions.  He said his only concern was if there might be an expectation that Peachtree City was
asking for automatic aid as part of the proposed annexation and he did not think that was grounds on which the Board
could object but he did feel that a clarification was required because it materially affects the response criteria.  He said
this would require changes in the County’s CAD system.  He said there had been no dialogue with the public safety
agencies regarding that matter.  He said this may just be a misstatement in their analysis and it might mean that
Peachtree City would be the principle responding agency rather than the County but they had used the term automatic
aid.  He said automatic aid was a relationship between two parties requiring whoever was closest to respond first. He
said this was the only reason he felt there needed to be clarification.  He said this was a separate discussion from the
annexation , but he just wanted to make sure the Board was aware of this information that was contained in Peachtree
City’s analysis of their annexation request.  


Chairman Smith said he felt Mr. Krakeel could get the clarification to these public safety issues but probably more
appropriately Public Safety Director Allen McCullough could contact them..
 
Public Safety Director Allen McCullough interjected that there must be enough time to work with 911 and their CAD
system to make whatever changeover was necessary.  He felt this would take approximately 30 to 60 days to
accomplish.


After the Board discussed this matter, no vote was taken.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
Level IV Drought Status: County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that State Climatologists had determined that
the drought was over for Fayette County as well as the State of Georgia.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to allow
staff to send a letter to the Environmental Protection Division requesting a modification to the County’s current Level IV
drought status that the County had been under for well over a year to a Level II drought status.  He remarked that Fayette
County had over 300 days of water supply available to meet the demands of the citizens of Fayette County.  He said
staff felt it appropriate to send a letter to the E.P.D. requesting the modification to a level II drought status that would put
the County back into the levels it had prior to the drought which had been maintained historically which was the odd/even
watering day restrictions.  


It was the consensus of the Board to allow staff to send this letter to the E.P.D.  A copy of the letter, identified as
“Attachment No. 5", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 1, 2009


Page 5


Graduate Intern for Stormwater Management:  County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that the Stormwater
Water Department had submitted a request for consideration to use a graduate intern to assist with G.I.S. work in the
County, specifically in impervious surface delineation.  He said the time frame for engaging the intern would be
approximately five weeks and cost approximately $1,411.  He said the Department currently did not have any budgeted
funds to cover this and he asked for consideration to take these funds out of the County’s Contingency Fund for this
purpose.  


Chairman Smith made a motion to authorize selection of a graduate intern for the Stormwater Management/G.I.S.
Department at a cost of approximately $1,411 with said amount coming out of the contingency fund.  Commissioner
Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


Property Owners’ Issue on Jenkins Road: County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that the Road Department
had received a request from property owners along Jenkins Road, including Sandy Creek Baptist Church, for
consideration of terminating Jenkins Road between Ellison Road and Sandy Creek Road due to a high volume of high
school traffic who continue to use that dirt road as a cut through to Sandy Creek High School.   


Chairman Smith said he was not in favor of closing any roads and felt this would create problems somewhere else.  


Commissioner Maxwell suggested a study be done to review this situation.  Mr. Krakeel said there were five property
owners who would be affected.  


Commissioner Hearn interjected that this was an ongoing situation on this road with dust and other issues and had been
going on for at least ten years. He said the County had looked into paving the road several years ago and people would
not donate right-of-way especially the people near Ellison Road.  


Commissioner Frady said he would be in favor of a study but was not in favor of closure.


Public Works Director Phil Mallon interjected that the intersection at Jenkins Road and Sandy Creek Road was one
project that was slated for improvement this year.  


Chairman Smith suggested that the Sheriff’s Office could review this situation to see what might help with the traffic issue
as well as Public Works Staff could talk with the affected property owners.  Mr. Krakeel said he would be glad to draft
a response letter indicating the Board’s decision.  


Bank of Georgia Occupational Tax Refund Request:  County Administrator Jack Krakeel said he had a tax refund
request from the Bank of Georgia to discuss with the Board.  A copy of the memorandum, identified as “Attachment No.
6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Smith interjected that he would recuse himself because of a conflict of interest and would now turn the meeting
over to Vice Chairman Frady.  He said he would not be present for this discussion and exited the meeting at this time.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel  briefed the Board on the Bank of Georgia’s request for a 2008 occupational tax
refund in the amount of $15,015 as a result of an overpayment.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion for authorization of a tax refund in the amount of $15,015 to the Bank of Georgia.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-0. Chairman Smith was absent from the meeting.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 1, 2009


Page 6


Commissioner Horgan made a motion for authorization for the Vice Chairman Herb Frady to sign the check in the amount
of $15,015 to the Bank of Georgia.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Chairman
Smith was absent from the meeting.


Chairman Smith re-entered the meeting at this time.  


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
State Court Issue Regarding Animal Control Functions: County Attorney Scott Bennett briefed the Board on an issue
that Judge Sams had brought to his attention regarding citations the County had written in cities  for violations of Animal
Control Ordinances.  He said in 2005 the County had entered into contracts with all of the cities to allow the County’s
Animal Control Officers to perform animal control functions within the cities.  He said some issues had recently been
raised on the procedural way the County was doing this.  He said Judge Sams had determined that there was a defect
in the procedures and the way he was conducting his court.  He added that as a result, Judge Sams had dismissed all
of the pending tickets that were currently within city limits, but this did not affect the tickets issued in unincorporated
Fayette County. He said he would be revising all of the contracts with the cities regarding the Municipal Court services
and hoped to bring these back to the Board on April 9  for consideration.th


Change of providers for managing the County’s 401A and 457 Retirement Plans: County Attorney Scott Bennett
remarked that the Board had made a decision at the last meeting to replace The Hartford Life Insurance Company with
Mass Mutual as the manager of the assets in the County employees’ 401A and 457 Retirement Plans.  He said in order
to implement that change, the Board would need to issue a letter to The Hartford terminating both of the contracts and
this would require written notice sixty days in advance.  He said  he had drafted a letter for the Board’s consideration
that would (1) terminate the 401A and 457 administrator services agreements with The Hartford, effective June 30, 2009;
and (2)  request The Hartford to cooperate with Mass Mutual by providing all information in their possession and all of
the reports that they generate.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to terminate the contract and authorize the
Chairman to execute the letter terminating said contracts.  He said the second item for the Board’s consideration was
to execute the contracts and other required documents with Mass Mutual.  He remarked that he had been informed that
there would  be numerous agreements coming to the Board for approval.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to
delegate the authority to sign those contracts to the Chairman after review by the County Administrator and himself as
County Attorney.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the letter to The Hartford Life Insurance
Company to terminate the current plan effective June 30, 2009.   Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 5-0.  A copy of the letter, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute all forthcoming contracts and documents
to effectuate the change over to Mass Mutual to administer the County’s 401A and the 457 Plan.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


STAFF REPORTS: 
Director of Community Development Pete Frisina - Neighborhood Stabilization Program Grant Award:   Director
of Community Development Pete Frisina updated the Board on the Neighborhood Stabilization Program Grant.  He
remarked that the Department of Community Affairs was asking for more detail on the Plan and had placed special
conditions on the County’s application that must be answered within forty-five days.  He remarked that there would have
to be another public hearing within 60 days of the return of the documentation back to the D.C.A.   He said the D.C.A.
had also placed special conditions on the application that the County would have to answer within 45 days.  He said the







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 1, 2009


Page 7


D.C.A. was asking staff to develop additional detail on the plan and answer the questions listed on the Statement of
Special Conditions. He called the Board’s attention to the area that would receive these funds and noted that it had to
be in an area with a Risk Score of  8-9 and this area was listed on the map as North Fayette County.  A copy of his
handout, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the documents received from the
Department of Community Affairs regarding the Neighborhood Stabilization Program Grant Award.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the documents, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Water System Director Tony Parrott  - Water Bill Inserts: Water System Director Tony Parrott reported to the Board
that a notice of new bill payment services provided by Paymentus, which will allow for electronic bill payment by credit
card, electronic check or debit card, would be included in customers’ water bills beginning next Monday.  A copy of the
notice, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Public Works Director Phil Mallon - S.R. 314: Public Works Director Phil Mallon remarked that the resurfacing work
on S.R. 314 was going to begin per the Georgia Department of Transportation but a specific date was not given.  


Fire Marshal David Scarbrough  - Possibility of Additional Zip Code Changes: Chairman Smith remarked that at
the last Board meeting, Commissioner Maxwell had requested additional information regarding zip code areas that result
in Fayette County citizens having mail delivery by post offices not located in Fayette County. He said Mr. Scarbrough
had information to present to the Board regarding this issue.  


Fire Marshal David Scarbrough discussed the areas in Fayette County where mail is delivered by Senoia and Jonesboro
Post Offices.  A copy of his handout, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.  He said he was aware of a few zip code concerns from citizens living in Jonesboro delivery area but not
from citizens living in the Senoia delivery area. 


Commissioner Hearn said he felt it was important to know if there was support from the citizens who would be affected
by any zip code changes.  He said he would not be in favor of making any changes unless there was a majority of the
citizens wanting the change.  He said he would also have concern with the renaming of any affected streets for these
areas.                                                                           


After further discussion, Chairman Smith suggested more research could be done but felt the Board would not want to
proceed with any zip code changes unless there was a request by the citizens in those areas.  


BOARD REPORTS:
Chairman Smith - West Fayetteville Bypass: Chairman Smith commented that there had been many discussions on
the West Fayetteville Bypass but none on the design of the road to make sure that in the future a parkway and rural
Fayette County feel was maintained along the roadway.  He asked for consideration (1) to allow staff to work on reducing
right-of-way acquisition from 120 ft. to 100 ft. which would save the County approximately $400,000 to $500,000; and
(2) to direct staff to start on an overlay zone for the West Fayetteville Bypass which would include access control as well
as buffers and setbacks.  


The Board was in agreement with Chairman Smith’s request.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 1, 2009


Page 8


EXECUTIVE SESSION:
None.


ADJOURNMENT: Commissioner Hearn made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 5:33  p.m.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


___________________________________                                __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                                    Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 23  day of April, 2009.rd


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


April 9, 2009
 7:00 P.M.


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, April 9, 2009, at 7:00 
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.
Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation.
Pledge of Allegiance.


ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA:  Commissioner Horgan made a motion to accept the agenda as presented.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion, discussion followed.  Chairman Smith requested item no. 12 under the
consent agenda be moved to New Business as letter G.  The motion carried 5-0.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
A. PRESENTATION OF THE GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION’S DISTINGUISHED


BUDGET AWARD FOR FAYETTE COUNTY’S ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE
30, 2008: 


The Board recognized Chief Financial Officer Mary Holland and Budget Officer Sergio Acevedo and presented them with
the Government Finance Officers Association’s Distinguished Budget Award for Fayette County’s annual budget for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.  Chairman Smith remarked that this was the 12  year in a row that Fayette County hadth


received the Distinguished Budget Award.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 2


B. PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING FAYETTE COUNTY 911 COMMUNICATIONS PROFESSIONALS
AND “NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATORS’ WEEK” FOR APRIL 12 - APRIL 18, 2009 IN FAYETTE
COUNTY:


Chairman Smith read and the Board presented a Proclamation recognizing Fayette County 911 Communications
professionals and National Telecommunicators’ Week for April 12-April 18, 2009 in Fayette County to Communications
Director Cheryl Rogers and Public Safety Director Allen McCullough.  A copy of the Proclamation, identified as
“Attachment No.1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


PUBLIC COMMENT:
KATHY ALLGOOD:   Kathy Allgood commented on the number of non Fayette County vehicles that she had counted
at Kenwood Park.  She pointed out on the day she performed the survey on auto tags, there were approximately 60
vehicles and 45 vehicles were non Fayette County vehicles.  


County Administrator Jack Krakeel interjected that the Marshal’s Office has been surveying the use of the Park over the
last two to three months.  He noted that staff was in the process of preparing a report for the Board’s consideration
regarding possible solutions to the issues associated with the use of the Park and that report would be forthcoming to
the Board within the next thirty days.  


VIC REMENESKI: Vic Remeneski commented on the Defined Benefits plan that was listed on the agenda for
consideration.  He cautioned the Board that once this plan was put into effect, it would be very hard to get out of the plan,
and the taxpayers would be obligated to this plan in the future.  


ANGELA HINTON FONDA: Angela Hinton Fonda commented on the Defined Benefits plan that was proposed for
Fayette County employees.  She pointed out that the problem was not with the pay in but the problem was with the pay
out. She said this Board was proposing to create what would amount to be a social security program for County
employees.  She further remarked that consultants who advise on the design of a project should never be allowed to
compete for the same project that they helped to design.  She stated that the Country was now in a financial 9/11 and
she asked the Board to consider the implications of this plan at this time.  


PAT HINCHEY:  Pat Hinchey read part of a letter that he presented to the Board regarding the Defined Benefits plan
that was proposed for Fayette County employees.  A copy of the letter, identified as “Attachment No. 2", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  He agreed that the County would save money over the next couple of years
but it would require a lot more money in the future.  He also commented on the idea that this plan would help retain
employees and said there were other ways to accomplish that.          


BOB ROSS: Bob Ross presented a handout to the Board illustrating Georgia Government Funding Trends, adjacent
County defined benefit plans and several recommendations for the Board’s consideration.  A copy of his handout,
identified as “Attachment No. 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. He noted that the counties
with defined benefit plans adjacent to Fayette County have funding ratios below 90%.  


CONSENT AGENDA: Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve consent agenda item nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8,
9, 10, 11 and 13 as presented.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 3


TAX ASSESSOR’S OFFICE - TAX REFUND REQUESTS:
1. Approval of recommendations from the Tax Assessor’s Office regarding requests for tax refunds.  A copy of


the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


FINANCE DEPARTMENT - CLOSURE OF CIP PROJECT 8220C MILAM ROAD
2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to close CIP Project 8220C Milam Road and transfer remaining funds to


the County Contingency Account.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follows
these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT - AMEND OVERTIME BUDGET ACCOUNT:
3. Approval of Sheriff’s Department request to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Criminal Investigation


Division by $2,633.33 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT - AMEND OVERTIME BUDGET ACCOUNT:
4. Approval of Sheriff’s Department request to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Criminal Investigation


Division by $1,061.55 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.  A
copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT - DISPOSITION OF HANDGUNS, AMMUNITION, ETC.:  
5. Approval of Sheriff’s Department request to allow for disposition of training handguns, conversion kits and


training ammunition determined to be of no further use to the Department.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 8", follows these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


WATER SYSTEM - BID #649 AWARDED TO H.B. SOLUTIONS, INC. AND IF IT’S PRINTED:
6. Approval of the Water System Director’s recommendation for approval to extend Bid #649, Water Bills and


Envelopes, to the two lowest bidders, H.B. Solutions, Inc. and If It’s Printed.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 9", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


ROAD DEPARTMENT - BID #701 AWARDED TO PITTSTOP ENTERPRISES AND LESTER PEEK GRADING AND
HAULING, INC.:
7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award annual Bid #701 to Pittstop Enterprises as the primary provider


and Lester Peek Grading and Hauling, Inc. as the secondary provider for hauling services.  A copy of the
request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof. 


 
ROAD DEPARTMENT - BID #702 AWARDED TO E.R. SNELL CONTRACTORS, INC. AND ALTERNATE C.W.
MATTHEWS CONTRACTING, INC.:
8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award annual Bid #702 Asphalt to E. R. Snell Contractors, Inc. and an


alternate bid to C. W. Matthews Contracting, Inc. as providers of asphalt for paving and resurfacing projects.
A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follow these minutes and are made an
official part hereof.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 4


ROAD DEPARTMENT - BID #703 AWARDED TO MID STATE CONSTRUCTION & STRIPING, INC.:
9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #703 to Mid State Construction & Striping, Inc. for the


County’s annual contract for roadway striping at a rate of $415 per line mile.  A copy of the request and backup,
identified as “Attachment No. 12", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


ROAD DEPARTMENT - BID #704 AWARDED TO BLACKLIDGE EMULSIONS, INC.:
10. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #704 to Blacklidge Emulsions, Inc. as the annual provider for


CRS-2h tack material for road paving and resurfacing projects.  A copy of the request and backup, identified
as “Attachment No. 13", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


WATER SYSTEM - FAYETTEVILLE MAIN STREET FLYER TO BE INSERTED IN WATER BILLS:
11. Approval of Water Committee’s recommendation to allow Fayetteville Main Street to insert a flyer in County


water bills during the months of July and August to publicize their summer concerts and other events.  A copy
of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No.14", follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.    


Item No. 12 was removed from Consent Agenda and placed under New Business as item G.:
12. Approval of staff’s recommendation to dispose of 33 surplus vehicles no longer of use by listing them for sale


on the GovDeals internet site.  


MINUTES: 
13.         Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meetings held on March 4, 2009,  March 12, 2009 and Special


Called Meeting held on March 23, 2009.


OLD BUSINESS:
C.       CONSIDERATION OF A RECOMMENDATION BY THE RETIREMENT STUDY COMMITTEE THAT THE


ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA/GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
CORPORATION OF GEORGIA BE THE DESIGNATED VENDOR TO PROVIDE A DEFINED BENEFIT
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR FAYETTE COUNTY EMPLOYEES:


Public Safety Director Allen McCullough remarked that this Committee had conducted research and fact finding during
the last 22 months ago at the Board direction. He said the Board had directed the Committee to research several
questions including (1) recruitment; (2) retention; (3) turnover rates; (4) competitiveness with surrounding cities and
counties relative to the County’s benefit program; (5) the status of the County’s existing Defined Contribution Plan; and
(6) the feasibility of the hybrid defined benefit type plan.  He said the Committee had determined overwhelmingly that
the County employees both supported the re-evaluation of the existing Defined Contribution Plan as well as would
support a Defined Benefit Plan with their contributions.  He said a survey was done with the County employees and the
results in support of that was 97%.  He said in the Fall of last year, the Board commissioned an RFP process to begin
which would look at both the Defined Contribution Plan and the Defined Benefit Plan.  He said the Committee was
instructed to report back to the Board by December, 2008.  On December 11  he appeared before the Board providingth


a report from the Committee.  He said the Committee’s recommendation to the Board at that time was that the
Committee unanimously felt that at this time it could not make a recommendation on any of the proposals as submitted
by the vendors.  He said during the Committee’s extensive process of evaluation for several months, the Committee
expressed its concern about the lack of clarity regarding the administrative costs, the lack of clarity and uncertainty
regarding future legal and actuarial costs, lack of clarity and uncertainty regarding plan oversight including staff time from
Human Resources and plan implementation.  He said the presentations provided by the various vendors really did not
give the Committee at that point the information that it needed to make a good sound recommendation.  He said as a







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 5


result the Committee had asked the Board for more time to review and also to be able to investigate multi employer
provider options at which point the Board gave the Committee permission to proceed.  


Mr. McCullough further remarked that the Committee had come back on February 4 , 2009 and the Board voted toth


accept the Retirement Study Committee’s recommendation to reject only those proposals that were related to Defined
Benefit.  He noted that the Committee’s next appearance was on March 12  at which point the Committee had enoughth


time necessary to interview and to further be able to bring back a recommendation to the Board for the Deferred
Compensation and Defined Contribution plan.  He said at that time, the Board voted to support the Committee’s
recommendation for Mass Mutual/AmRet.  He said the Committee’s focus was turned toward the defined benefit
retirement plan, and at the Board’s meeting on April 1  the Committee presented a recommendation for the Board’sst


consideration.  He said it was the Retirement Study Committee’s recommendation that the Association of County
Commissioners of Georgia/Government Employee Benefits Corporation of Georgia be the designated vendor to provide
a Defined Benefit Retirement Plan for Fayette County employees.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as
“Attachment No. 15", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


Chairman Smith asked Mr. McCullough if the 3.8% County contribution had changed any to give the Board any cause
for concern that it was no longer a viable number.  Mr. McCullough replied that he did not have any new information that
this figure had changed, and Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke confirmed that the figure had not changed.
Mr. McCullough said the most current numbers had been run a few weeks ago and still supported the 3.8% was the
County’s contribution.  


Chairman Smith asked Chief McCullough to comment on the issue of high turnover among County employees and
especially Public Safety employees.  Mr. McCullough replied that he had been with the County for twenty-seven years
and the downturn in the economy since last year had been much more significant than the economy downturns in the
past.  He said Public Safety had historically found that when the economy improves the department’s turnover rate
increases and there would be a revolving door syndrome.  He said the Committee was trying to be proactive so that
departments could keep their current employees and give them something that provided a level of security. 


Commissioner Frady asked Mr. McCullough to explain the cost savings to the County.  Mr. McCullough replied that at
the present time the County was contributing up to 8% and at this point the proposal was that amount would be dropped
to 6.3% with the County contribution to the Defined Benefit Program being 3.8% and the employee contribution being
2.5%.  He said the County had agreed to contribute 2.5% to the Defined Contribution Program if the employee matches
that to 5%.  He said overall there would be a reduction from 8% to 6.3%. He said the County was not moving in the
direction of any unfunded liability where there would be credit for prior years of service.  He said the employees who had
already been here 30 years would probably not benefit from this plan.  He said if the Board approved this plan, it would
start at zero on July 1 .  Commissioner Frady expressed concern with future Boards and changes that might be madest


to this Defined Benefits Plan.  


Commissioner Maxwell thanked the committee for their diligence and remarked that he had supported a Defined Benefit
Plan from day one.  He said this was a two part process.  He said the Board had already voted 4-1 in November 2008
to go to a Defined Benefit Plan.  He said in reviewing the parameters of the Defined Benefits Plan that the Committee
was recommending he was satisfied that the parameters of the proposed Defined Benefits Plan were adequate with
safeguards in place based on actuarial studies that the decision that this Commission was about to make would not put
the County at risk either now or in the future.  He said the plan would in fact save the County money.  He said he would
not be able to support the decision for GEBCorp and wanted to make sure that there was no misunderstanding.  He said
he supported the Defined Benefit Plan but would prefer a different vendor, and for that reason he would be abstaining
from the vote.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 6


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Retirement Study Committee’s recommendation that the
Association of County Commissioners of Georgia/Government Employee Benefits Corporation of Georgia be the
designated vendor to provide a Defined Benefit Retirement Plan for Fayette County employees.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion, discussion followed.


Chairman Smith commented on the concerns of many companies filing bankruptcy.  He said those were private plans
and were underfunded.  He said the Defined Benefits Plan that this Board was voting on tonight would be a plan that
was funded every year and it was not a plan that would put the County in the same position as current private companies
that were failing.  He remarked on the comment that the County would never be able to get out of this plan and he said
actually the County could get out.  He said unlike private concern plans, this Board could vote to get out of this plan any
time that it wanted to and any future Board could do the same thing.  He said concern had also been expressed about
Board risk and future Boards making changes.  He said the Boards in the future could also make changes to the existing
plan and increase the contributions to it by any amount that they saw fit.  He said this Board could not obligate or stop
future Boards from doing what they want to do while in office.  He commented on the loss of revenue and said this was
also a very real issue, however, this Board would be saving the County approximately $500,000 per year.  He felt it was
critical to remember that there was a savings in this plan.  He said since this process started approximately 24 months
ago, this Board had tried its best to examine, investigated and ask questions and assistance of people who were more
knowledgeable about the inner workings of these plans.  He commended everyone involved for getting all of the
information necessary for this Board to make an intelligent decision tonight.                             


The motion carried 3-1-1 with Commissioner Frady voting in opposition and Commissioner Maxwell abstaining from the
vote.  


D.         CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION FOR A DESIGNATED VENDOR TO PROVIDE THE
COUNTY’S EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE SERVICES:


Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke remarked that the Human Resources Department was in the process of
reviewing various options for employee health insurance.   She briefly discussed the issue of co-pays for employees and
noted that the committee was looking to see if there were any options for employees.  She said they were also looking
into the possibility of self-insurance as an option.  She said there would be a formal recommendation for the Board at
the April 23, 2009 Board of Commissioners’ meeting.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No.
16", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


NEW BUSINESS:
E. CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION TO RENEW THE COUNTY’S WORKERS


COMPENSATION INSURANCE COVERAGE WITH MIDWEST EMPLOYERS CASUALTY COMPANY AND
FOR THIRD PARTY SERVICES PROVIDER UNDERWRITERS SAFETY & CLAIMS, INC.:


Human Resources Director Connie Boehnke discussed staff’s recommendation to renew the County’s Workers
Compensation Insurance coverage with Midwest Employers Casualty Company and for Third Party Services Provider
Underwriters Safety & Claims, Inc.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 17", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  She said it was staff’s recommendation to renew the County’s Workers
Compensation Insurance coverage with Midwest Employers Casualty Company for a period of one year and for third
party services provider Underwriters Safety & Claims, Inc. for a period of two years.  She said it was also being
recommended that the retention be increased to $350,000 for all employees.  She said currently all employees were
$300,000 and public safety employees were $350,000 and staff was recommending the $350,000 for all employees. 







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 7


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to renew the County’s Workers Compensation
Insurance coverage with Midwest Employers Casualty Company and for third party services provider Underwriters Safety
& Claims, Inc.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


F.         CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST BY THE FAYETTE HERITAGE PROJECT THAT THE BUILDINGS AND
GROUNDS DEPARTMENT BE ALLOWED TO BUILD AND INSTALL CORNER AND GATE POSTS AT THE
COUNTY OWNED PHILLIPS CEMETERY ON DAVIS ROAD WITH MATERIALS PROVIDED BY THE
HERITAGE PROJECT:


President of the Fayette Heritage Project Tony Parrott remarked that the County owned Phillips Cemetery located on
Davis Road.  He said the property surrounding the cemetery was undeveloped and the committee felt that the installation
of corner and gate posts would help with future development.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to approve the
request by the Fayette Heritage Project that the Buildings and Grounds Department be allowed to build and install corner
and gate posts at the County owned Phillips Cemetery on Davis Road with materials provided by the Heritage Project.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 18", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the request by the Fayette Heritage project that the Buildings and
Grounds Department be allowed to build and install corner and gate posts at the County owned Phillips Cemetery on
Davis Road with materials provided by the Heritage Project.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 5-0.


Item No. 12 moved from Consent Agenda:
G.           APPROVAL OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION TO DISPOSE OF 33 SURPLUS VEHICLES NO LONGER


OF USE BY LISTING THEM FOR SALE ON THE GOVDEALS INTERNET SITE:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that staff was requesting that the 2004 Chevy 1500 be removed from the
list of assets to be disposed of and transferred to the Engineering Department.  He remarked that the Engineering
Department has requested to utilize this vehicle in lieu of a request for a new vehicle in the upcoming budget process.
He said it was his recommendation to authorize a transfer of this vehicle to the Engineering Department rather than
disposing of it.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 19", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation to dispose of 32 surplus vehicles no longer of
use by listing them for sale on the GovDeals internet site and to transfer the 2004 Chevy 1500 to the Engineering
Department.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
GRADUATION CEREMONY FOR THE INDUCTION OF NEW CERTIFIED PUBLIC SAFETY PERSONNEL: County
Administrator Jack Krakeel announced that there would be a graduation ceremony for the induction of new certified
Public Safety personnel tomorrow morning at 10:00 a.m. in the Public Meeting Room.  


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:
ECO-SOUTH AGREEMENT FOR MITIGATION WORK AT THE PIGEON CREEK SITE: County Attorney Scott Bennett
asked for the Board’s consideration to authorize the Chairman to execute the contract with Eco-South, Inc. to do
mitigation work for the County at the Pigeon Creek Site in the amount of $583,494. He remarked that under the
agreement, Eco-South, Inc. would do the grading and planting work that was required by the Army Corps of Engineers
for the 401 Permit.  He said they would warranty all of the plantings for a period of one year from the date they are







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 8


planted.  He noted that the grading work would be warrantied for five years against what they call a two time bankfull
event.  He said if there was a wash out then they would come back and replant everything at no cost to the county.  He
said at the end of five years, the Corps would inspect it and release the credits from the site.  He said the work was
delineated clearly as described in the 401 Permit and the work that they were actually going to do.  He said Eco-South
would submit invoices to the County as work was completed and the County would have the opportunity to inspect the
work and then make payment.  He also noted that the late fees had been removed and the warranties were very clear.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the contract with Eco-South, Inc. to do
mitigation work for the County at the Pigeon Creek site in the amount of $583,494.  Commissioner Horgan seconded
the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the contract, identified as “Attachment No. 20", follows these minutes and
is made an official part hereof.  


TRAMMELL-HORTON CONTRACTING LLC AGREEMENT FOR FENCING AT MITIGATION SITES: County Attorney
Scott Bennett remarked that the Board had approved a bid award to Trammell-Horton at its March 12  meeting to doth


fencing around the mitigation sites.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to authorize the Chairman to execute the
agreement with Trammell-Horton Contracting LLC for fencing at mitigation sites in the amount of $176,343.


Commissioner Frady made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the agreement with Trammell-Horton
Contracting, Inc. for fencing at mitigation sites in the amount of $176,343.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.
The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the agreement, identified as “Attachment No.  21", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH PEACHTREE CITY REGARDING PAVING ½ MILE PORTION OF
REDWINE ROAD: County Attorney Scott Bennett remarked that on the calendar for this year the County would be
repaving Redwine Road and ½ mile of the road goes through Peachtree City.  He noted that the County Administrator
has spoken with Peachtree City and Peachtree City has agreed to pay for the paving materials and the striping for the
½ mile.  He said the County would be providing the labor and the work and then send an invoice to Peachtree City for
the materials and striping costs.  He said the Mayor and Council of Peachtree City had already approved this
Intergovernmental Agreement.  He asked for the Board’s consideration to authorize the Chairman to execute the
Intergovernmental Agreement with Peachtree City regarding reimbursement to the County for materials and striping for
the repaving ½ mile of Redwine Road.


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the Intergovernmental Agreement with
Peachtree City regarding reimbursement to the County for materials and striping for the repaving ½ mile of Redwine
Road.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.  A copy of the Intergovernmental Agreement,
identified as “Attachment No. 22", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


STAFF REPORTS:
None.


BOARD REPORTS:
None.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:
None.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


April 9, 2009


Page 9


ADJOURNMENT: Commissioner Hearn made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:35 p.m.  Commissioner Horgan
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 5-0.


___________________________________                                __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                          Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 23  day of April, 2009.rd


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Peter A. Frisina/ Dennis Dutton


Approval of staff's recommendation that Bellfair Run, Broad Meadows Lane, and Wildflower Court, located in Bellfair Walk Preserve 


Subdivision, be authorized for motorized cart travel in accordance with Ordinance 95-10.


In April 1995, the Board of Commissioners adopted Ordinance 95-10 authorizing the Board of Commissioners to designate streets for 


motorized cart travel.  Bellfair Run, Broad Meadows Lane, and Wildflower Court are internal subdivision streets located in the Bellfair 


Walk Preserve Subdivision and are not subject to the same evaluation as external streets existing outside subdivisions. 


 


Ordinance 95-10 requires a minimum of fifty-one percent (51%) of the property owners  in the subdivision to sign a petition requesting 


authorization for motorized carts.  There are thirty-two (32) lots in the subdivision and all but three (3) property owners, or 91% of 


property owners, have signed the petition. 


 


If the requested streets are approved for motorized cart usage, staff will update the list of streets authorized for motorized cart use and 


will forward a copy to Brian Eubanks in the Sheriff's Department for enforcement and to Phil Mallon in the Public Works Department for 


the posting of proper signage.


Approval of motorized cart usage in Bellfair Walk Preserve Subdivision.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009

















































		Planning and Zoning- Motor Ca... Walk Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Motor Carts Bellfair Walk Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Motor Carts Bellfair Walk Backup.pdf

		2.0001

		2.0002

		2.0003












COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Consideration of Petition No. 1213-09, Johnie Williams and JEW Properties, LLC., and Billy Brundage of Brundage Engineering, Inc., 


Agent, request to rezone 37.08 acres from A-R to M-1 to construct a new maintenance building for Dixieland Fun Park.  This property is 


located in Land Lot 216 of the 5th District and fronts on Corinth Road and Curved Road.


The Planning Commission considered Petition 1213-09 on May 2, 2009 and recommended that the Petition be tabled until the May 7, 


2009 Planning Commission meeting at the request of the Applicant. 


 


Staff has recommended denial of Petition 1213-09. 


Table Petition No.1213-09 until May 28, 2009 in order for said Petition to be reviewed by the Planning Commission at its May 7, 2009 


meeting.  This Petition will be readvertised for Public Hearing to be held on May 28, 2009.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Public HearingThursday, April 23, 2009







BOARD MEMBERS   STAFF 
 


Douglas L. Powell, Chairman   Peter A. Frisina, Director of Community Development 


Tim Thoms, Vice-Chairman   Tom Williams, Assistant Director of Planning & Zoning 


Al Gilbert     Dennis Dutton, Zoning Administrator 


Bill Beckwith     Robyn S. Wilson, P. C. Secretary/Zoning Coordinator 


Jim Graw            


                                                                                                                                        


 


AGENDA OF ACTIONS 


FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 


PUBLIC MEETING 


PUBLIC MEETING ROOM 


APRIL 2, 2009 


7:00 P.M. 
                                                                                                                                                             


 


 


WELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Consideration of the Minutes of the meeting held on January 8, 2009.  PC approved the 


Minutes 5-0. 


 


2. Consideration of the Workshop/Public Meeting Minutes of the meeting held on February 19, 


2009.  PC approved the Workshop/Public Meeting Minutes 4-0-1. 


 


 


THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION 


ON APRIL 2, 2009, AND THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ON APRIL 23, 2009. 


 


3. Consideration of Petition No.  1213-09, Johnie Williams and JEW Properties, LLC, Owners, 


and Billy Brundage of Brundage Engineering, Inc., Agent, request to rezone 37.08 acres from 


A-R to M-1 to construct a new maintenance building for Dixieland Fun Park.  This property 


is located in Land Lot 216 of the 5th
 
District and fronts on Corinth Road and Curved Road. 


Staff recommended Denial.  PC recommended to table the petition as requested until May 7, 


2009. 





		Planning and Zoning- Petition...13-09 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Petition No. 1213-09 Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina/Phil Mallon/Tony Parrott


Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Subdivision Regulations. This issue was last discussed at the April 1, 2009 


Workshop.


The primary change proposed is for clarification of the approval process for final plats which are eventually filed in the Clerk of Courts' 


Office. The proposed amendments will clarify that final plats are to be approved by the Planning Commission and not by the Planning 


Commission's administrative staff. Since the County's Subdivision Regulations were originally adopted in 1973, there are other changes 


proposed throughout the document, generally to make the language more contemporary and in the same style as other codes and 


ordinances currently in use. Other than the clarification concerning final plat approval, other changes are not procedural or substantial in 


nature. 


 


The proposed changes concerning the approval of final plats can be found in Section 3-2 on page 6 and Section 4-2.5 on page 10. 


 


Planning Staff brought this issue to the Board at its April1 Workshop for permission to proceed with developing proposed amendments. 


The Board concurred that changes should be made and directed staff to prepare recommended changes. If the Board is satisfied with the 


recommendations, staff is asking permission to advertise the proposed amendments to be heard by the Commissioners on May 28.


Permission to advertise the proposed amendments to be heard by the Board of Commissioners on May 28, 2009.


Not Applicable


Yes Wednesday, April 1, 2009


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Old BusinessThursday, April 23, 2009













































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Subdivis...tions Agenda Request File.pdf

		Planning and Zoning- Subdivision Regulations Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker


Approval of  request from the Sheriff's Office to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Criminal Investigations Division by $2,288.41 
for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigation Division (10030321-511300) by $2,288.41 which has been received from various federal programs for the 2008-2009 Fiscal 
Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular budgeting category to $145,406.65.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


     April 23, 2009
    7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


A. Proclamation recognizing May 4, 2009 as “Honor Flight Fayette Day”.


B. Proclamation recognizing May 2009 as “Foster Parent Month” and May 12
through May 18, 2009 as “Foster Parent Appreciation Week”.


PUBLIC HEARING:


C. Consideration of Petition No. 1213-09, Johnie Williams and JEW
Properties, LLC., and Billy Brundage of Brundage Engineering, Inc., Agent,
request to rezone 37.08 acres from A-R to M-1 to construct a new
maintenance building for Dixieland Fun Park.  This property is located in
Land Lot 216 of the 5th District and fronts on Corinth Road and Curved
Road. STAFF RECOMMENDED DENIAL.  THE PLANNING COMMISSION
TABLED SAID PETITION UNTIL MAY 7, 2009 AS REQUESTED BY THE
APPLICANT.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of staff’s recommendation to extend Proposals P558, P614 and
P623 to Building Maintenance Services, Inc. and Imagann Cleaning
Service, Inc. for one year, becoming effective on July 1, 2009, at an
aggregate cost of $57,996.


2. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #706 to Walker Concrete
for one year for the purchase of Ready-Mix concrete.


3. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Office to dispose of thirty one (31)
Sig-Arms P229R .40 S&W caliber pistols in exchange for thirty eight (38)
P226R .40 S&W caliber pistols.


4. Approval of request from the Sheriff’s Office to amend the Overtime Budget
Account for the Criminal Investigations Division by $2,288.41 for
reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various federal
agencies.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice-Chairman
Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4thst Thursday each month at 7:00


 p.m.


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
April 23, 2009
Page Number 2


5. Approval of the Sheriff’s Department- Jail Division request to dispose of items of clothing and bedding from the
Jail which are no longer serviceable.


6. Approval of staff’s request for permission to apply for a grant from the Department of Homeland Security
Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program, in the amount of $18,675.41.


7. Consideration of staff’s request that the Board authorize a change order in the amount of $12,788.20 to
STRACK, Inc. for plan and field changes to Proposal #P689, Storm Drainage System Installation for the West
Fayetteville Bypass Phase I Project.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation that Bellfair Run, Broad Meadows Lane, and Wildflower Court, located in
Bellfair Walk Preserve Subdivision, be authorized for motorized cart travel in accordance with Ordinance 95-10.


9. Approval of staff’s request to award Bid # 710 to Enviro Recyclers, Inc. of Fairburn, in the amount of $28,500,
to grind vegetative debris at the Fayette County Transfer Station.


10. Approval of April 1, 2009 Board of Commissioners Workshop minutes and April 9, 2009 Board of
Commissioners minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


D. Consideration of staff’s recommendation for a designated vendor to provide the County’s employee health
insurance services.  This item was last discussed at the April 9, 2009 Board of Commissioners meeting.


E. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Subdivision Regulations.  This issue was last
discussed at the April 1, 2009 Workshop.


NEW BUSINESS:  


F. Approval of staff’s request to extend the current Technical Support Program coverage for the Siemens Building
Automation System at the Fayette County Justice Center, including the Jail Complex, and the Fayette County
Annex Building with Siemens Building Technologies for three years, beginning on July 1, 2009, at an aggregate
cost of $168,960.


G. Consideration of staff’s recommendation that the County adopt a policy to be known as the Fayette County
Identity Theft Program designed for the detection, prevention, and mitigation of identity theft pertaining to
customers’ accounts administered by the Fayette County Water System.


H. Consideration of staff’s recommendation for renewal of property and casualty insurance with Public Risk
Underwriters for Fiscal Year 2010 at the proposed premium of $415,660.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORT
BOARD REPORT
EXECUTIVE SESSION
ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Buildings and Grounds Greg Ownby


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #706 to Walker Concrete for one year for the purchase of Ready-Mix concrete.


On May 22, 2008, the Board of Commissioners approved extending a contract with Walker Concrete that would expire on April 30, 2009.  


During the year the price of concrete has risen and Walker Concrete was not able to extend the contract for another year at previously 


bid prices.  The Purchasing Department received bids from other concrete supply vendors and information detailing those bids, including 


the tally sheet and other backup material, are submitted with this request.   


 


Staff, including Mr. Tim Jones of Purchasing, Mr. Greg Ownby of Buildings and Grounds, and Mr. Tony Parrott, concurs that Bid #706 


should be awarded to Walker Concrete for one year even though they were not the lowest bidder for the following reasons: 


 


1)  Walker Concrete does not have an exception concerning loads less than five (5) cubic yards unlike the low bidder, Ready Mix USA, 


that requires a $50 delivery charge for loads less than five cubit yards.  Building and Grounds states that more than half its workload 


would may require less than five cubic yards of concrete and therefore would incur additional charges. 


 


2)  The second lowest bidder, Fairburn Ready Mix, Inc., can maintain their prices only through December 31, 2009 at which time their 


prices may rise.


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Bid #706 to Walker Concrete for one year for the purchase of Ready-Mix concrete.


Not Applicable.


No Thursday, May 22, 2008


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Finance - Let's be sure to take advantage of 2% discount, this will require prompt attention and submission of invoice in a timely manner. 


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009





















		Buildings and Grounds- Bid 706 Agenda Request File.pdf

		Buildings and Grounds- Bid 706 Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Major Bryan Woodie


Approval of request from the Sheriff's Office to dispose of thirty one (31) Sig-Arms P229R .40 S&W caliber pistols in exchange for thirty 


eight (38) P226R .40 S&W caliber pistols. 


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office is requesting to dispose (sell/trade) of thirty one (31) Sig-Arms P229R .40 S&W caliber pistols.  The 


pistols were purchased with Federal Seizures Funds and any proceeds made from disposing the pistols must be placed into the 


originating funds to be used for law enforcement purposes.   


 


For safety and uniformity, the Sheriff requires all personnel to be equipped with the same weapon.  In a high stress situation, ammunition 


magazines that are not interchangeable between pistols could lead to confusion. 


 


The Sheriff's Department desires to replace the Sig-Arms P229R .40  S&W caliber pistols with thirty eight (38) P226R .40 S&W caliber 


pistols in order to meet the safety and uniformity requirements.


Approval of the Sheriff's request to replace thirty one (31) Sig-Arms P229R .40 S&W caliber pistols with (38) P226R .40 S&W pistols in 


order to increase safety and uniformity among Sheriff's Department personnel. 


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009





		Sheriff- Sig Sauer Trade Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Sig Sauer Trade Backup

		Sherrif- Sig Sauer Trade Backup A

		FIXED ASSET CHANGE FORM



		Sheriff- Sig Sauer Trade Backup 1

		FIXED ASSET CHANGE FORM



		Sheriff- Sig Sauer Trade Backup 2

		FIXED ASSET CHANGE FORM



		Sheriff- Sig Sauer Trade Backup 3

		FIXED ASSET CHANGE FORM



		Sheriff- Sig Sauer Trade Backup 4

		FIXED ASSET CHANGE FORM














COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Department Jail Division Captain Steve Coker


Approval of the Sheriff's Department-Jail Division request to dispose of items of clothing and bedding from the Jail which are no longer 


serviceable.


Approximately once a year, staff from the Jail requests permission to dispose of old inmate clothing and bedding that is no longer of use 


to them.  These items are normally incinerated.  The last request of this type occurred at the August 28, 2008 Board of Commissioners 


meeting. 


 


In order to destroy items belonging to Fayette County, the Board of Commissioners must declare them to be of no further use to the 


County.


Approval to allow the Sheriff's Department to dispose of old articles of clothing and bedding no longer serviceable.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009









		Sheriff- Uniform Disposal Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Uniform Disposal Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Buildings and Grounds Greg Ownby


Approval of staff's recommendation to extend Proposals P558, P614 and P623 to Building Maintenance Services, Inc. and Imagann 


Cleaning Service, Inc., for one year, becoming effective on July 1, 2009, at an aggregate cost of $57,996.


On May 11, 2006, the Board of Commissioners awarded Proposal #558 to Building Maintenance Services for $1,750 per month and 


Imagann Cleaning Services for $705 per month.  Building Maintenance Services was authorized to clean the Public Works Building for 


$350 a month, the Kiwanis Park Gym for $525 a month, the Recreation Activities House for $500 a month and the McElroy House for 


$375 a month.  At the time authorization was given, Imaggan Cleaning Services was cleaning the Fayette County Library and the Water 


System Building on McDonough Road. The Board's authorization enabled Imaggan Cleaning Services to also clean the Public 


Defender's Office for $348 a month and the 911 Communications Building for $357 a month. 


 


During August and September, 2007, the Board of Commissioners awarded Proposal #P614 and Proposal #P623 to C&T Janitorial 


Services for the purpose of cleaning the Fayette County Library and Water System Building for $1,565 per month and $710 per month 


respectively.  In July, 2008, Fayette County terminated its agreement with C&T Janitorial Services and Imagann Cleaning Services 


resumed cleaning the Fayette County Library and Water System Building. 


  


Staff is recommending that Proposals P558, P614 and P623 be extended for one year to both Building Maintenance Services and 


Imaggan Cleaning Services.


Extend Proposals P558, P614 and P623 to Building Maintenance Services and Imaggan Cleaning Services for one year, becoming 


effective July 1, 2009, for one year at an aggregate cost of $57,996.


Funding for this request has been budgeted in Buildings and Grounds' General Fund.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009







Proposals P558, P614, and P623


Cost per Month Cost per Year


Public Works Building 350.00$                4,200.00$        


Kiwanis Park Gym 525.00$                6,300.00$        


Recreation Activities House 500.00$                6,000.00$        


McElroy House 375.00$                4,500.00$        
Total 1,750.00$             21,000.00$      


Cost per Month Cost per Year


Public Defenders Office 348.00$                4,176.00$        


911 Communications Building 357.00$                4,284.00$        
Total 705.00$                8,460.00$        


Cost per Month Cost per year


Fayette County Library 1,663.00$             19,956.00$      
Total 1,663.00$             19,956.00$      


Cost per Month Cost per year


Fayette County Water System Building 715.00$                8,580.00$        
Total 715.00$                8,580.00$        


Building Maintenance Services Aggregate per Month/Year 1,750.00$             21,000.00$      


Imagann Cleaning Services Aggregate per Month/Year 3,083.00$             36,996.00$      
Aggregate Cost for Cleaning Service 4,833.00$             57,996.00$      


Assumed from C&T Janitorial Services July, 2008


Imagann Cleaning Service


Proposal #P623


Assumed from C&T Janitorial Services July, 2008


Proposal #P558


Awarded May 11, 2006


Imagann Cleaning Service


Proposal #P614


Building Maintenance Services


Awarded May 11 ,2006


Imagann Cleaning Service


Proposal #P558





























		Buildings and Grounds- Janito...rvice Agenda Request File.pdf

		Buildings and Grounds- Janitorial Service Backup

		Buildings and Grounds- Janitorial Service Backup 2.pdf

		Buildings and Grounds- Janitorial Service Backup 3








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Solid Waste Tony Parrott


Approval of staff's request to award Bid #710 to Enviro Recyclers, Inc. of Fairburn, in the amount of $28,500  to grind vegetative debris at 


the Fayette County Transfer Station.


Fayette County grinds vegetative debris collected at the Fayette County Transfer Station at least once a year.  Currently, the County has 


accumulated over 25,000 cubic yards of vegetative debris at the Transfer Station and it receives an additional 100 to 150 cubic yards 


daily.   


 


Since grinding vegetative debris occurs on an "as needed" basis, bids are received from vendors for the specific work requested.  Enviro 


Recyclers was awarded Bid #681 on September 5, 2008 for $18,500 for grinding vegetative debris.  Other vendors have been awarded 


similar bids throughout the years. 


 


Bids have been solicited from four local companies and over 20 bids were received.  Enviro Recyclers is the apparent low bidder.  In 


previous instances where Enviro Recyclers was granted the contract they have done an excellent job for the County. 


 


The accumulated vegetative debris will be ground into mulch that is well suited for gardening and yard work, and will be made available 


to Fayette County citizens at no charge.


Approval of staff's request to award a contract to Enviro Recyclers of Fairburn for the purpose of grinding accumulated vegetative debris 


at the Fayette County Transfer Station.


Grinding vegetative debris is covered under the landfill services account.  There is $28,500 remaining in account 54040500-521317 


which is sufficient to cover the bid.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009













		Solid Waste- Vegetative Debris Grinding Agenda Request File.pdf

		Solid Waste- Vegetative Debris Grinding Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Buildings and Grounds Greg Ownby


Approval of staff's request to extend the current Technical Support Program coverage for the Siemens Building Automation System at the 


Fayette County Justice Center, including the Jail Complex, and the Fayette County Annex Building with Siemens Building Technologies 


for three years, beginning on July 1, 2009, at an aggregate cost of $168,960.


Fayette County entered into an agreement with Siemens Building Technologies for technical support on July 1, 2004 and the agreement 


is due to expire on June 30, 2009.  This agreement provided technical support to the Justice Center and the Jail Complex.  Siemens has 


proposed a three (3) year coverage extension that would begin on July 1, 2009 with no changes made to the current contract scope of 


coverage or terms and conditions.  The total cost of this renewal for three years is $124,164. 


 


On July 1, 2006, Fayette County entered into a similar agreement with Siemens Building Technologies for technical support and the 


agreement is also due to expire on June 30, 2009.  This agreement provided technical support to the Fayette County Annex Building.  


Siemens has proposed a three (3) year coverage extension that would begin on July 1, 2009 with no changes made to the current 


contract scope of coverage or terms and conditions.  The total cost of this renewal for three years is $44,796. 


 


Siemens was the initial contractor during construction of the Justice Center and Annex Building, and has been the support contractor for 


their systems to date. 


Approval of staff's request to extend the current Technical Support Program coverage for the the Siemens Building Automation System at 


the Fayette County Justice Center, including the Jail Complex,  and the Fayette County Annex Building with Siemens Building 


Technologies.


Funding for this request is available from the Justice Center's General Maintenance Fund and from the Sheriff's Department Budget.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 23, 2009





















		Buildings and Grounds- Seimens Agenda Request File.pdf

		Buildings and Grounds- Siemens Background

		Building System Technologies, Contract Renewal for Justice Center.pdf

		Building System Technologies, Contract Renewal for Annex








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Carol Chandler


Proclamation recognizing May 2009 as "Foster Parent Month" and May 12 through May 18, 2009 as "Foster Parent Appreciation Week".


Ms. Susan Boggs, Director of Fayette County's Department of Family and Children's Services, has requested that May, 2009 be 


proclaimed as "Foster Parent Month" and that the week of May 12-18, 2009 be recognized as "Foster Parent Appreciation Week" in 


Fayette County. 


 


National Foster Care Month had its genesis in 1988 when the National Foster Parent Association persuaded Senator Strom Thurmond to 


introduce a resolution proclaiming May as National Foster Care Month.  President George H.W. Bush would also issue an annual 


proclamation during each  year of his presidency, providing an impetus for state, county and city proclamations. 


 


These proclamations will bring notice to the work Fayette County DFCS is performing, will honor foster parents across Georgia for their 


open homes, and will encourage citizens to contribute their talents and their homes on behalf of foster children throughout Fayette 


County and the State of Georgia.


Present proclamation declaring May, 2009 "Foster Care Month" and the week of May 12th- May 18, 2009 "Foster Parent Appreciation 


Week" in Fayette County.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, April 23, 2009







PROCLAMATION


“Foster Care Month”


Whereas, Families are the primary source of love, identity, self-esteem and support for children and youth, who


represent the future of our communities; and


Whereas, Today, the State of Georgia is providing foster care for over 14,000 children, some of whom are


placed in the homes of relatives; and


Whereas, Foster families across the state who have opened their homes and extended love and security to


these children and have supported their birth families in meeting the goals necessary to reunify


parents and their children; and


Whereas, The State of Georgia has a need for more foster parents for children so they may have a safe, secure


and stable living environment; and


Whereas, Foster families give of themselves to provide a valuable society benefit and a loving home to children


in need; and


Whereas, Numerous private and public social service agencies work to increase public awareness of the needs


of foster children in Georgia and the role that we must play in addressing this community


responsibility; and


Whereas, The month of May is recognized as National Foster Care Month;


Now, therefore, we, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, do hereby proclaim May, 2009 as


“FOSTER CARE MONTH”


and the week of May 12 through May 18, 2009 as


“FOSTER PARENT APPRECIATION WEEK”


in Fayette County, and in doing so we urge our citizens to volunteer their talents and energies on behalf of children in


foster care, foster parents and professional foster care program staff.


So proclaimed this 23rd day of April, 2009 by the


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


______________________________


Jack R. Smith, Chairman





		Commissioners- Foster Care Month Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Foster Care Month Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Carol Chandler


Proclamation recognizing May 4, 2009 as "Honor Flight Fayette Day".


Gail Sparrow, President of Honor Flight Fayette, has organized another flight of World War II veterans to Washington D.C. on May 4, 


2009 in order to see their War Memorial.  In 2008 Ms. Sparrow organized three similar flights and the veterans were honored for their 


sacrifices by the County for their efforts on each of those events. 


 


Ms. Sparrow is asking that Fayette County once again honor the World War II veterans by proclaming May 4, 2009 "Honor Flight Fayette 


Day".   


 


The proclamations presented by the Board of Commissioners are framed and used as a part of a display for the "send off" events for 


veterans on the morning of their flights. 


Present proclamation declaring May 4, 2009 "Honor Flight Fayette Day".


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, April 23, 2009







PROCLAMATION


“HONOR FLIGHT FAYETTE DAY”


Whereas, Honor Flight Fayette Foundation, Inc. is a non-profit organization created to recognize and pay


homage to our local World War II Veterans in appreciation for their great sacrifices and faithful service


to our County; and


Whereas, Honor Flight Fayette is part of the National Honor Flight Network which was founded in 2004 to honor


Veterans throughout America, with their primary goal to fly veterans to Washington, D.C. to visit their


War Memorials, particularly World War II Veterans; and


Whereas, Because Honor Flight recognizes that our nation is losing World War II veterans at a rate of 1,200 per


day and that sadly, most of them will never have had the opportunity to visit their National Memorial


in Washington because it was not built until 2004, Honor Flight Fayette has taken on the urgent


mission of honoring local World War II Veterans by providing them cost-free flights to visit their


National Memorial; and


Whereas, On May 4, 2009, Honor Flight Fayette will host its fourth flight to Washington, providing 70 veterans


of the greatest generation with an opportunity to visit the National World War II Memorial and to spend


the day as “Guests of Honor”, and to talk and share memories of service and sacrifice for our Great


Nation;


Now therefore, we, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, are hereby proud to proclaim May 4, 2009,


“HONOR FLIGHT FAYETTE DAY”


and in doing so we thank the founders of Honor Flight Fayette who selflessly initiated this effort that will mean so much


to so many in our community; and further, though words cannot adequately express the gratitude, admiration and respect


we hold for the Veterans who will participate in the history-making second flight to Washington on October 8, we wish


this band of brothers and sisters a day of camaraderie, sharing, and tribute in recognition of a willingness to serve and


sacrifice those many years ago that protected our Homeland, preserved our freedom, and reinforced America’s position


as the Greatest Nation in all the World.


So proclaimed this 23rd day of April, 2009, by the


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA


______________________________


Jack R. Smith, Chairman





		Commissioners- Honor Flight Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Honor Flight Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Engineering Carlos Christian


Consideration of staff's request that the Board authorize a change order in the amount of $12,788.20 to STRACK, Inc. for plan and field 


changes to Proposal #P689, Storm Drainage System Installation for the West Fayetteville Bypass Phase I Project.


STRACK, Inc. was awarded proposal #P689, Storm Drainage System Installation for the West Fayetteville Bypass-Phase I project.  The 


contract award was for $246,044.  During construction, adjustments were made to the road profile to balance cut/fill amounts and two 


detention basins were added for better soil erosion and sediment control.  These changes, along with the hitting of rock, resulted in the 


need for STRACK to provide some services not identified in the original contract, including: cutting additional holes in concrete structures, 


providing two outlet control structures, and trenching in rock.   


 


These services yielded credits of $15,701.40 and add-ons of $12,788.20.  The net result was that all work, including the change orders, 


was completed for $243,130.80 ($2,913.20 less than the original contract amount).  Board approval is requested for the $12,788.20 add-


on because it represents the services not identified in the original contract.   


 


Authorization of change order #2 submitted by STRACK, Inc. in the amount of $ 12,788.20.


No funding is required.  The revised contract amount is less than the original award.  


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, April 23, 2009









		Engineering- Storm Drain Agenda Request File.pdf

		Engineering- Storm Drain Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Tony Parrott


Consideration of staff's recommendation that the County adopt a policy to be known as the Fayette County Identity Theft Program 


designed for the detection, prevention, and mitigation of identity theft pertaining to customers' accounts administered by the Fayette 


County Water System.


The federal Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 (Public Law 108-159) designates certain federal agencies to (A) establish 


guidelines for use by credit-lending entities regarding identification of "red flags" that could indicate identity theft, and (B) prescribe 


regulations requiring each of the covered entities to establish reasonable policies and procedures for implementing the guidelines 


established to identify risks to account holders.  The federal agencies charged with this task published the resulting regulations in section 


16 CFR 681.2 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  The regulations include public utilities such as water systems in the definition of 


"creditor," so the Water System is required to comply with the stipulations of the regulations. 


 


Regulations at 16 CFR 681.2 provide that each creditor must "develop and implement a written Identity Theft Prevention Program that is 


designed to detect, prevent, and mitigate identity theft in connection with the opening of a covered account or any existing covered 


account."  It says that the creditor must "obtain approval of the initial written Program from either its board of directors or an appropriate 


committee of the board of directors."  Once the initial approval of given by the Board, updates or other changes can be made by a 


appointed "senior-level manager" who is appointed to oversee the program.  The Federal Trade Commission and other involved federal 


agencies required that the program be in place by May 1, 2009.


To obtain approval of the policies and procedures developed to constitute the county's Identity Theft Prevention Program as required by 


federal Public Law 108-159.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, April 23, 2009







 


 
Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville GA 30214 Main Phone:  770-460-5730 Web Site:  www.fayettecountyga.gov 


 
 
 
To:  Mary S. Holland 
 
From:  Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:  April 7, 2009   
 
Subject: Identity Theft Prevention Program 
 
The federal Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act (FACT Act) of 2003, which is 
designated as Public Law 108-159, was signed into law by former President Bush on 
December 4, 2003.  It required the Federal Trade Commission, the National Credit Union 
Administration, and the federal banking agencies to jointly establish regulations for the 
identification of patterns, practices, or specific forms of activity (called “red flags”) that 
indicate the possibility of identity theft.  The federal agencies developed guidelines to 
implement the program, and published them in section 16 CFR 681 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations. 
 
The regulations require that any public or private entity must develop and implement an 
Identity Theft Prevention Program if they provide customers with an: 
 


• Account – defined as a continuing relationship established so that a person, family, 
household, or business can obtain a product or service, and then be billed afterward.  
Since the service is provided before the customer is billed, this is said to “extend 
credit”. 


• Covered account – defined as: 
o An account (as defined above) that involves multiple payments or 


transactions, such as a credit card account, mortgage loan, cell phone 
account, checking or savings account, or utility account; and 


o Any other account (as defined above) for which there is a reasonably 
foreseeable risk to customers or the public or private entity from identity theft. 


 
The county’s Water System falls within the regulations, since it does establish accounts, 
provide a service, then bill customers afterward at the end of the month.  Other county 
services, such as business licenses or ad valorem taxes, do not fall within the definition 
because they do not extend credit while providing a service. 
 
 







In this county, a person can open a water account in person or over the 
telephone by contacting the Water System.  Customers can pay bills in person or 
through the mail.  Beginning April 6, 2009 customers can pay bills on-line by 
credit card, debit card, or electronic check.  The on-line payments will be 
processed by a third-party service provider.  The process will include the 
following steps: 


• A customer goes on-line to the Water System page on the county web 
site.  A link will put them through to the web site of Paymentus.com. 


• Paymentus.com is the third-party payment service.  They accept the debit 
card, credit card, or electronic check payment.  They create an electronic 
file with customer information, which is uploaded to the Water System.  
They forward transaction information electronically to Chase Paymentech. 


• Chase Paymentech verifies that the credit card or other transaction 
instrument is legitimate, that the customer’s account is in good standing, 
and other related information.  After processing the information, Chase 
Paymentech sends it electronically to Wachovia Bank for settlement. 


 
An important component of the Identity Theft Prevention Program regards these 
third-party service providers.  The regulations state that the county “should take 
steps to ensure that the activity of the service provider is conducted in 
accordance with reasonable policies and procedures designed to detect, prevent, 
and mitigate the risk of identity theft.  For example, {the county} could require the 
service provider by contract to have policies and procedures to detect relevant 
Red Flags that may arise in the performance of the service provider’s activities, 
and either report the Red Flags to the {county}, or to take appropriate steps to 
prevent or mitigate identity theft.” 
 
Federal regulations require that the Board of Commissioners must approve the 
initial written policy.  Thereafter, the program’s policies and procedures can be 
updated at the discretion of “the Board, a committee, or senior management.”  
The regulations also allow for a member of senior management to be appointed 
to provide oversight, development, implementation, and administration of the 
program.  The policies and procedures include a provision for the Water System 
Director to be the appointed member of senior management. 


N:\Ted Burgess\Water Svcs\Red Flags\Agenda Memo P2.doc 







April 7, 2009 
 


Fayette County, Georgia 
Identity Theft Prevention Program 


 
 
PURPOSE 
 
Public Law 108-159, the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 
(FACT Act), was signed into law by the President on December 4, 2003.  The 
FACT Act directed the Federal Trade Commission, the federal banking agencies, 
and the National Credit Union Administration to jointly establish regulations for 
the identification of patterns, practices, or specific forms of activity (called “red 
flags”) that indicate the possibility of identity theft.  The resulting guidelines were 
published in section 16 CFR 681 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  The 
regulations require local governments to establish identity theft programs for 
“covered accounts.”  Water services or other utilities are covered accounts.  
These policy and procedures establish the Identity Theft Program for the county’s 
Water Services. 
 
 
POLICY 
 
Program Objectives: Fayette County’s Identity Theft Prevention Program is 
established to enhance protection of financial and other personal information of 
customers of the Water System.  Procedures are designed to (1) identify red flag 
activities that indicate possible identity theft; (2) detect red flags that have been 
identified, determined relevant, and incorporated into the Program; (3) respond 
appropriately to red flags that are detected, in order to prevent or mitigate identity 
theft; and (4) ensure the Program is updated periodically, to reflect changes in 
risks to Water System customers, or to the safety and soundness of the county, 
from identity theft. 
 
Program Oversight and Administration: The Water System Director is 
designated as the senior-level manager to provide oversight, development, 
implementation and administration of the Program.  Duties of the Director 
include, but are not limited to, the following: 


• The types of covered accounts maintained; 
• Assign specific responsibilities for Program implementation; 
• Approve or initiating material changes to the Program as necessary to 


address changing identity theft risks. 
• Periodically provide reports to the County Administrator and Board of 


Commissioners regarding compliance with federal requirements for the 
Program. 


• Provide for requirements that relevant service providers have adequate 
safeguards in place to detect and respond to red flags. 


Page 1                                             N:\Ted Burgess\Water Svcs\Red Flags\Red Flag Program - 4-2-08.doc 







• Provide for periodic staff training, as necessary, to assure the 
effectiveness of the Program. 


 
PROCEDURES 
 


A. Identification of red flag activities: The Water System has reviewed 
processes and operating procedures to identify activities that should be 
considered red flags.  This was accomplished using guidance provided by 
the FACT Act and federal regulations found in 16 CFR 681.2, and 
considering: 
• methods used to open water service accounts, 
• methods used to access accounts, and 
• previous experience regarding identity theft. 


 
Following is a list of activities that are considered red flags in prevention 
and intervention of identity theft: 
 


Suspicious Documents 
 


1. Documents provided for identification appear to have been altered 
or forged. 


2. Other information on the identification is not consistent with 
information provided by the person opening a new covered account 
or customer presenting the identification. 


3. Other information on the identification is not consistent with readily 
accessible information that is on file with the Water System, such 
as an existing signature or a recent check. 


4. A service application appears to have been altered or forged, or 
gives the appearance of having been destroyed and reassembled. 


 
Suspicious Personal Identifying Information 
 
5. Personal identifying information provided is inconsistent when 


compared against external information readily available to the 
Water System. 


6. Personal identifying information provided by the customer is not 
consistent with other personal identifying information provided by 
the customer. 


7. Personal identifying information provided is associated with known 
fraudulent activity as indicated by internal or third-party sources 
used by the Water System.  For example, the address or phone 
number on an application is the same as that provided on a 
fraudulent document. 


8. Personal identifying information provided is of a type commonly 
associated with fraudulent activity as indicated by internal or third-
party sources.  For example, the address on an application is 


Page 2                                             N:\Ted Burgess\Water Svcs\Red Flags\Red Flag Program - 4-2-08.doc 







fictitious, a mail drop, or a prison, or the phone number is invalid or 
associated with a pager or answering service. 


9. The address or telephone number provided is the same as, or 
similar to, the account number or telephone number submitted by 
an unusually large number of other persons opening accounts or 
other customers. 


10. The person opening the covered account, or the customer, fails to 
provide all required personal identifying information on an 
application, or in response to notification that the application is 
incomplete. 


11. Personal identifying information provided is not consistent with 
personal identifying information that is on file with the Water 
System. 


 
Suspicious Activity Related to the Covered Account 


 
12. Change of address is requested for an account, followed by a 


request to change the account holder’s name. 
13.  Mail sent to the account holder is repeatedly returned as 


undeliverable. 
14. Notice is given to the Water System that a customer is not receiving 


mail sent by the System. 
15. A breach is made in the Water System’s computer system security. 
16. There is unauthorized access to, or use of, customer account 


information. 
 


Notice from Customers, Victims of identity Theft, Law Enforcement 
Authorities, or Others Persons Regarding Possible Identity Theft in 
Connection With Covered Accounts 
 
17. The Water System is notified by a customer, a victim of identity 


theft, a law enforcement authority, or any other person that it has 
opened a fraudulent account for a person engaged in identity theft. 


 
B. Detection of Activities that have been Identified as Red Flags: 
 


New Accounts:  In order to detect any of the above red flags that pertain to 
opening a new account, Water System personnel will take the following 
steps to obtain and verify the identity of the person opening the account: 


 
• For a residential account, require adequate identifying information 


such as the new customer’s name and residential address. 
• For a business account, require adequate identifying information, 


such as the applicant’s name, business address. 
• Independently contact the customer. 


 


Page 3                                             N:\Ted Burgess\Water Svcs\Red Flags\Red Flag Program - 4-2-08.doc 







Existing Accounts: In order to detect any of the above red flags for an 
existing account, the Water System’s personnel will take the following 
steps to monitor account transactions: 
 


• Verify the identification of customers if they request information, 
whether in person, via telephone, via facsimile, or via e-mail. 


 
C. Response to Red Flags: In the event that a Water System employee 


becomes aware of red flag(s), the employee shall immediately report the 
red flags to his or her supervisor.  If the supervisor, in his or her discretion, 
determines that further action is needed, a Water System employee shall 
perform one or more of the following responses, as determined 
appropriate: 


 
1. Contact the customer. 
2. Take the following steps if, after contacting the customer, it is 


apparent that someone else has accessed the account: 
a. Change any account numbers, passwords, security codes, or 


other access to the account; or 
b. Close the account. 


 
3. Cease attempts to collect additional charges from the customer.   


Decline to sell the customer’s account to a debt collector in the 
event that unauthorized access has caused additional charges to 
accrue. 


4. If the customer’s account has been sold to a debt collector, notify 
the debt collector as soon as reasonably possible of a discovery of 
actual or possible identity theft. 


5. Notify law enforcement. 
6. Take other appropriate action to prevent or mitigate identity theft. 


 
 


D. Updating the Program: The Water System will update the Identity Theft 
Prevention Program periodically, in order to reflect changes in risks to 
customers, or changes to the safety and soundness of the billing and 
service system, as relates to identity theft.  The frequency of updates will 
be based on factors such as: 


 
• Experience of the Water System with actual or attempted identity 


theft; 
• Changes in methods of identity theft; 
• Changes in methods to detect, prevent, and mitigate identity theft; 
• Changes in the types of accounts used; or 
• Changes in the business arrangements of the Water System with 


third-party service providers or others. 
 


Page 4                                             N:\Ted Burgess\Water Svcs\Red Flags\Red Flag Program - 4-2-08.doc 







E. Third-Party Service Providers: The Water System provides a number of 
services to customers through third-party service providers.  These 
include payment processors, banks, and others.  The Water System will 
assure, through contractual agreement, that any service provider receiving 
or processing customers’ personal information has an identity theft 
prevention program in place.  The service provider shall have policies and 
procedures to detect relevant red flags that may arise in the performance 
of services, and either report the red flags to the Water System or take 
appropriate steps to prevent or mitigate identity theft. 


 
F. Reports: The Director of the Water System shall report to the Board of 


Commissioners as needed, but at least annually, on material matters and 
compliance related to the Identity Theft Prevention Program.  The report 
shall include, as appropriate, such issues as the effectiveness of the 
Water System in addressing the risk of identity theft in opening new 
accounts or existing accounts; service provider arrangements; significant 
incidents involving identity theft and management’s response; and any 
material changes to the program. 


 
 
 


Page 5                                             N:\Ted Burgess\Water Svcs\Red Flags\Red Flag Program - 4-2-08.doc 





		Finance- Identity Theft Prevention Agenda Request File.pdf

		Finance- Identity Theft Prevention Backup

		Identity Theft Memo Page 1.pdf

		Identity Theft Memo Page 2

		Identity Theft - Policy & Procedures





